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Torbay Council

Statement of Accounts e 2020/2021

Introduction

The purpose of the Statement of Accounts is to present a detailed overview of the Council’s financial
position as at the end of March 2021. It gives information as to the Council’s assets and liabilities at a point
in time (31st March 2021) and detail on the Council’s financial performance during 2020/21. This
information is, where material, supported by notes to the accounts.

The Statement includes the:
e Director of Finance’s Narrative Statement
e Statement of Accounts including:

o The Core Financial Statements for 2020/21 including balance sheet, income and expenditure
account, cash flow and movement in reserves.

o Notes to the Core Financial Statements, that provide further detail to the core statements
o Accounting Policies. The ‘framework’ adopted in preparing the accounts.

o The Collection Fund Summary Account (for the accounting for the collection of National
Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) and Council Tax)

o Group Accounts
e Annual Governance Statement

The form and content of the Statement of Accounts is highly prescribed, by the CIPFA Code of Practice, and
is produced on an International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) basis. The classification of costs,
income, and services under IFRS and the “Code of Practice” is different to the Council’s internal financial
reporting to management.

The Accounts are presented on a “going concern” basis as Councils cannot be created or dissolved without
statutory prescription, it would not therefore be appropriate for local authority financial statements to be
prepared on anything other than a going concern basis.

The Accounts are a technical document and due to statutory requirements are a lengthy and complicated
document. The figures in these accounts are presented to the nearest £100,000. The Code states that
“information is material if omitting it or misstating it could influence decisions that users make based on
financial information about a specific reporting authority. In other words, materiality is an authority-specific
aspect of relevance based on the nature or magnitude, or both, of the items to which the information relates
in the context of an individual authority’s financial statements”.

“Group” accounts have been produced to consolidate the Council’s financial position with the companies
that it owns or has an ownership in with notes if material. The financial position of its subsidiary and related
companies is fully disclosed in both the Narrative Statement and the related parties note.
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The Accounts are subject to a detailed audit by the Council’s external auditor (Grant Thornton UK LLP).

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations, the Accounts, with its supporting documents, are available for
public inspection. Full details are available from Financial Services at Torquay Town Hall or on the Council’s
website.

The Narrative Statement aims to offer interested parties a concise and easily understandable effective guide
to the most significant matters reported in the accounts. The Council’s Director of Finance is the Council’s
appointed Chief Finance Officer.

The Council, under the Accounts and Audit Regulations must approve an Annual Governance Statement
which provides an explanation of the Council’s governance framework, provides a summary of how the
effectiveness of the framework has been reviewed over the course of the year and actions which will be
taken over the coming year to improve the Council’s governance. The 2020/21 Statement has been included
within this document but is not part of the Accounts and is outside the external auditor’s opinion on the
Accounts.

The Statement of Accounts is a key financial document published by the Council. The Council’s website
contains the Statement of Accounts for previous years and a range of additional financial information:

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/council/finance/statement-of-accounts/

All financial reports such as monitoring reports and outturn reports are reported on a regular basis to
Council Committees and are available at

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/

There is a glossary at the back of these documents to help explain the meaning of some of the local
government finance and accounting terms.

The Council is required under statute to publish its unaudited accounts by the 31 May of the following
financial year, however for 2020/21 and 2021/22 this has been extended to 31 July. The Council’s external
auditors will audit the accounts to enable Council (via Audit Committee) to approve its accounts with a
publication date of audited accounts by end of September.
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Director of Finance’s Narrative Statement
Our Place

Torbay offers a quality of life for individuals and families — its natural environment, clean air, climate,
location, good schools, growing arts and cultural sector and wide range of outdoor activities means that
Torbay provides everyone with the opportunity to live a healthy and fulfilled life.

Torbay comprises the three coastal towns of Torquay, Paignton and Brixham with a population more than
133,000, of which 62,000 are between the ages of 18 and 64. In addition, Torbay attracts around 1.6
million visitor trips each year.

Torbay has established areas of economic success in many industries including fishing, a large social care
sector and growing pharmaceutical and tech industries. Our residents have high levels of satisfaction with
Torbay as a place to live. However, like many coastal areas, Torbay suffers from high levels of poverty and
deprivation with an ageing population, increasing demand for children’s social care and not enough
opportunities for young people.

Our Council

As a unitary authority, Torbay Council is responsible for a wide range of services including social care,
transport, culture, housing, parks, beaches and waste.

Local elections are held every four years. A referendum on the governance arrangements for Torbay
Council was held in May 2016. As a result of the referendum, from May 2019 Torbay Council changed from
being made up of the Elected Mayor and 36 Councillors to a Leader and Cabinet model of governance.

A total of 36 Councillors represents Torbay’s 16 wards and the political make-up at March 2021 of the
Council is 12 Liberal Democrats, 14 Conservatives and 10 independents. The Liberal Democrat group and
Independent group have joined together to form the administration of the Council, with the Liberal
Democrat Leader of the Council supported by 6 cabinet members including an Independent Deputy Leader
of the Council.

Further detail of the Council’s governance and its risk management arrangements are set out in the Annual
Governance Statement, which is included in addition to the Statement of Accounts.

Supporting the work of the Leader of the Council and Councillors is the officer structure of the Council
headed by the Senior Leadership Team (SLT). This is made up of the Council’s most senior officers and
ensures that the key Statutory Officers are represented at the most senior level of the Council.

Torbay Council employs a total of 984 people (952 19/20), this does not include schools based employees.
Our Corporate Plan

The Council’s Community and Corporate Plan — One Torbay: Working for all Torbay, was adopted in
February 2020 with the ambition of wanting Torbay and its residents to thrive.

To deliver our ambition we have identified four visions, each with several priority areas:

e Thriving people

e Thriving economy

e Tackling climate change

e A Council fit for the future
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Thriving people

We will ensure that all activities of the Council are focused on turning the tide on poverty and that
Torbay’s residents, young and old have high aspirations and the opportunity to reach their full potential.

Our aim is to ensure that all our residents are active, healthy, safe, resilient, and self-sufficient with good
quality homes, which are affordable and meet their needs. They will have access to high quality
employment opportunities whilst living in a community which is vibrant and attractive.

For those in need of extra support, there will be access to good quality children’s and adult social care.

We will create a whole community response to make Torbay a child-friendly and age-friendly place. One
Torbay: Working for all of Torbay so that the people in our communities thrive.

Thriving economy

We will achieve our economic potential and play our distinctive role in the national and international
economy. We will be well-connected with skilled individuals, a diverse economy and higher quality, better
paid jobs.

We will work to ensure that the local economy is sustainable so as to deliver long term future prosperity
and an improved quality of life for all of our residents, especially those living in our most deprived areas.

We want to achieve clean, green and inclusive growth.

Through our people, our businesses and our infrastructure, we will create a whole community response to
drive forward clean, inclusive growth. One Torbay: Working with all of Torbay so that our economy thrives.

Tackling climate change

We will work to reduce consumption and increase recycling. We will promote low carbon energy and work
to improve poor air quality and reduce noise and emissions.

We will create a whole community response to protect our environment. One Torbay: Working for all of
Torbay to tackle climate change.

A Council fit for the future
We will fundamentally change the way in which the Council communicates and engages with all residents,
including our young people. We will strengthen our relationships within the community and across our

partnerships, including ensuring that our plans align.

We will be an organisation that our communities can trust. One Council: Working for all of Torbay to enable
our communities and create a Council is fit for the future.

Our Achievements
e Thriving people

2020/21 was a very challenging year for Torbay. The council, its partners and many community
organisations and individuals pulled together and worked alongside each other to respond to the COVID-19
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pandemic and meet the needs of the community. An immense amount of hard work resulted in the figures
below and demonstrates (amongst other areas of response) the exceptional strength of the Bay’s
community spirit and our commitment to working together in the face of the greatest of challenges. As of
March 2021, there were:

e 28,958 contacts made by council staff to offer people clinically vulnerable to the virus and advised
to shield from the virus, help and support.

e 18,500 calls taken by volunteers at Torbay community helpline, which is a group of organisations
from the charity and voluntary sector in the Bay led by Community Development Trust.

e 7,000 local children, young people and their families in the Bay provided with vouchers over the
school holidays.

e 1,688 ‘rapid responses’ made by volunteers for people who cannot leave their home and needing
urgent help with shopping and prescriptions.

e 1,500 volunteers offering their help, including 323 people helping get people to and around the
vaccination centre in Torquay, 245 people signing up to be community champions who help share
key information with friends and family, and 81 volunteer drivers. 68 new Good Neighbour
schemes have also been established.

Torbay Council contributed funding to Torbay Food Alliance, a consortium of 12 food banks and community
voluntary organisations, formed as a direct response to the Covid-19 lockdown. The organisations work
collaboratively to provide a more co-ordinated response to local need and to better share skills, resources,
and information. Over half a million food parcels have so far been sorted, packed, and distributed to meet
the demand for food from those facing food poverty or needing extra help due to shielding or self-
isolation.

A COVID-19 Community Action Fund was established in 2020 to provide support to organisations working
with communities, who are being impacted by coronavirus and the social and economic consequences.
Grant funding was provided to community-led schemes, which addressed some of the local issues.

Torbay Council’s COVID Community Champions initiative is the first of its kind in Devon and Cornwall. The
champions volunteered to share the latest facts and advice on tackling the virus and acted as reliable
sources of information. Local schools worked with the initiative to develop networks for staff and pupils.

Covid Winter Grant scheme funding was used in partnership with Citizens Advice Devon and Torbay
Community Helpline to help up to 600 residents with fuel bills. Eligible families received a one-off payment
in the form of vouchers or an online payment.

Torbay schools were one of the top performing areas when children returned in September 2020. Average
attendance for that week was above 94% meaning over 17,200 children and young people were welcomed
back. Our Schools and Education teams worked closely with schools on their risk assessments in the lead
up to the return.

Away from the response to the Covid-19 pandemic, Torbay secured £8.6m of funding to provide additional
school places from 2021/22. The 'Basic Need’ funding announced is in addition to existing DfE funding for
the new free schools in Paignton. Torbay will also receive £0.4m Capital funding for repairs and
maintenance for its six maintained schools.

A wide range of improvements were made to the way Children’s Services works with children and their
families. Improvements include Restorative Practice and Family Group Conferences which enable social
workers and families to work alongside each other to agree the best outcome for the child or young
person, preventing the need for further intervention.



Torbay Council
2020/21 Statement of Accounts for the year ended 315t March 2021 — Narrative Statement

The transfer of youth services to Torbay Youth Trust came just 6-weeks before the first national lockdown.
Despite the pandemic, the Trust has made significant developments to expand the support on offer to
young people that need it. The Youth Trust has increased the presence of the Youth Service and Young
Carers Service within the area, so that the voices and needs of vulnerable young people are clearly heard in
these challenging times. It has also set up a Youth Forum, secured funding from the Diversiteen Community
Interest Company to support young people from the LGBTQ+ community, and has been accepted onto an
international research project focused on the emotional well-being of young carers.

Prior to the pandemic, Torbay had a thriving early years intergenerational visitation programme with
fifteen care homes engaging in visits and activities with early years providers across the bay. Torbay Early
Years Advisory Team worked with childminders and care homes to develop a new 12-week course, based
on a national initiative, and aimed at bringing old and young together (safely).

At Torbay Children’s Services, the fight against Child abuse, exploitation and neglect has gone up several
gears with a new Exploitation Team firmly established to understand the picture of exploitation in Torbay,
and to continue to develop processes and tools to enhance understanding of exploitation and more
importantly the responses to children who are victims of exploitation.

TorVista Homes, TDA's new housing company, has been awarded Registered Provider status for housing by
the Regulator for Social Housing. It aims to deliver a wide range of good quality homes and services and to
be the landlord of choice for all sectors of the community across the region. In addition, TorVista Homes
has achieved Investment Partner status with Homes England to enable it to bid for, and receive the grant
required to support the delivery and acquisition of affordable housing which will help maximise the
number of homes delivered in Torbay.

The Council has been able to invest £150k towards subsidising local bus services which were at risk of being
cancelled by operators. Losing any bus route can impact our elderly residents and those who are mobility
impaired especially in the hillier areas of the bay and where the continuation of routes is critical to the
wellbeing of our residents.

A new fund of £54,000 to help spruce up local areas across the Bay was made available so Ward Councillors
and Community Partnerships can work together with their local communities to gather ideas of grass roots
projects and proposals that this fund could be used on.

The English Riviera UNESCO Geopark has been awarded another four years membership of the expanding
Global Geoparks Network, now 161 Geoparks in 44 countries supported by United Nations Educational,
Scientific and Cultural Organisation. The designation acts as driver for education, community benefits,
expansion of the tourism offer, and sympathetic regeneration.

e Thriving economy

Over £60 million in restrictions grants and business rates relief had been paid out to businesses in the Bay
by the end of March 2021 to help mitigate the effects of COVID-19. Nearly 7,000 businesses were
contacted directly about restriction grants, support and guidance throughout the pandemic.

A prime retail site in Torquay was purchased as part of our plans to regenerate Torbay’s town centres. The
acquisition meets the objectives of the Town Centre Strategy in supporting regeneration and improving the
economy. The TDA assisted in the purchase which demonstrates our commitment to investing in Torbay.

During the 2020 summer season, to support hospitality businesses with their recovery plans, free short-
term consents / temporary licensed lease agreements were offered by Torbay Council. This enabled the
provision of outdoor customer seating in line with the social distancing guidelines at that time.
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We have been allocated up to £13.36m Future High Streets Funding to start the transformation of Paignton
town centre. The funding will enable infrastructure improvements, new homes at strategic locations and
an enhanced cultural offer. The funding will also stimulate matched investment into Paignton town by
other private and public investors, totalling more than £100 million.

Torquay has also been offered a Town Deal to unlock £21.9m investment from the Towns Fund to drive
economic regeneration. The funding will be used to deliver projects from the Torquay Town Investment
Plan to provide a better mix of uses, creating an improved experience and greater footfall in the town
centre, support growth in public transport and are expected to attract additional private sector investment
into the town.

As part of that Deal, Torquay received £750,000 in accelerated funding for several projects listed in the
Town Investment Plan. This is to deliver long term economic and productivity growth as part of the Towns
Fund. These projects will create an improved experience for people using these spaces and encourage
footfall to these locations.

The Reopening High Streets Safely project in Torbay is continuing to look at ways to support businesses
during this uncertain time. Local businesses are being supported in several ways, including guidance from a
dedicated Information Officer.

A campaign delivered by TDA and Maybe* on behalf of Torbay Council will create a network of traders to
support and promote shopping in Torbay. By encouraging safe shopping and giving customers rewards
when shopping locally, both online and offline, the campaign will help consumers to ‘Discover your Town’
and drive spend to local companies.

Torbay’s Apprenticeship Steering Group worked with partners to deliver local events that supported the
National Apprenticeship Week 2021 campaign. This included interactive information and virtual events
online to support schools and students. The Group also recognised how employers of all sizes have stepped
up during these challenging times.

e Tackling climate change

Torbay Council welcomed the award of £7.8m from Network Rail and the Department of Transport towards
a new railway station in Torquay. The station at Edginswell will have a range of local benefits including
creating quality travel opportunities by making better use of existing transport assets and helping to
address emissions from road transport.

A new Resource and Waste Management Strategy which sets out how the Council will effectively manage
household waste was approved in February 2021. It outlines a range of improvements to make the Bay
cleaner and greener, with the priority of reducing source materials being produced.

Six temporary ‘pop-up’ footway and cycle schemes were put in place to help improve the local
environment for those who want to walk and cycle more around the Bay, whilst maintaining social
distancing. Using the Emergency Active Travel Fund, the main purpose has been to promote cycling as a
replacement for journeys that were previously made on public transport.

Around 150 Giant Redwood Trees have been planted along Riviera Way as part of our commitment to
improving the environment and to help reduce Torbay’s carbon emissions. Over time, the aim is to create
an avenue of Giant Redwoods that will form part of the gateway into Torbay.

e A Council fit for the future

Torbay is one of just five Councils in the country to be shortlisted for the prestigious Co-op Council of the
Year Award for our work during the pandemic. Community food resources and fundraising efforts were
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brought together to create the Torbay Food Alliance. This approach is being built upon to create a strategic
food partnership which will provide a long-term collaborative approach and will create a resilient local food
system.

In April 2020, Torbay Council launched a new One Torbay email newsletter to provide people with regular
and reliable updates on council services and activities, as well as celebrating Torbay more widely. It
included information and advice about how the council and its partners were working for Torbay during
the COVID-19 situation, as well as stories about the communities of the bay.

Torbay received prestigious awards for ten of its beaches. Seven were awarded the national Seaside Award
for bathing and resort. Three other beaches were given a combined Seaside and Blue Flag Award by Keep
Britain Tidy on behalf of the Foundation for Environmental Education.

After 10 years of TOR2 providing services including refuse collection and recycling for Torbay, these
services were brought back in house from July 2020, with the establishment of a new wholly owned
company named SWISCo. SWISCo’s vision is to improve and sustain where we live and work by
transforming service delivery.

Torbay Council launched an ambitious new in-house Learning Academy which represents a new investment
in social worker professional development. The Academy will help our social care staff build their
professional skills and futures with us and ensure our social workers are at the top of their profession. The
Learning Academy’s fundamental goal will be to develop social work practice to achieve excellent
outcomes for Torbay’s children and families.

A Community Engagement and Empowerment Strategy was developed during 2020 which outlines how the
Council intends to meet its mission to be a Council that works in partnership with its residents,
communities, and partners. The Strategy sets out how we propose to improve our community engagement
and how we want to work alongside and empower the community in Torbay.

The second Torbay Community Conference was held virtually in September 2020. It was designed to build
on the work established at the initial 2019 Community Conference. Torbay Council continues to be
committed to developing a more engaged relationship with individuals and communities across the Bay.

The Local Outbreak Management Plan published in June 2020 details the measures put in place to help
address COVID-19 outbreaks in Torbay and describes how we will work to prevent and manage any future
outbreaks. Key to the Plan is partnership working between local authorities, health, police, schools, care
homes, businesses, and key industry sectors such as tourism.

The Torbay Lottery raised £11k for the 2020/2021 Small Grants Fund pot and we have provided match
funding of £11k to help communities recover from Covid-19. Local charity, voluntary and community sector
organisations are invited to apply for a bid towards the costs of a specific activity or for the purchase of
small items of equipment up to £2k.

A new enforcement team from National Enforcement Solutions have been appointed to clean up the Bay.
Officers have the power to issue fixed penalty notices to anyone committing environmental crimes in
Torbay. Initially they will be focusing on tackling littering, dog control, fly-tipping, graffiti, and abandoned
vehicles.
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Our Performance
e Thriving people

o The number of looked after children fell slightly to 315 at the end of March 2021 from 357
in March 2020.

o There were 161 Social Care referrals to Torbay Children’s Services during the month of
March 2021. This is a large increase on the figure for the same period in 2020 (78).

o The successful treatment of opiate users increased slightly to 5.9% in 2019 from 5.0% in
2018 but has not neared the 7.5% achieved in 2017. However, this latest figure is above
the target of 5.6% which is the England average.

o The percentage of physically active adults fell slightly from 69.8% in 2018/19. To 69.1% in
2019/20. However, this is above the target of 66.4% (England average).

o The percentage of adults with a learning disability in paid employment was 8.3% at the end
of March 2021. This is less than at the end of March 2020 (8.8%) but higher than the target
of 7.0%.

o The proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services who live
independently rose from 49.2% at the end of March 2020 to 78.7% at the end of March
2021. This is above the target of 60.0%.

o Numbers in temporary accommodation were 105 at the end of quarter 4 2020/21, just
over half what they were for the same period the previous year (203).

e Thriving economy

o Average earnings for Torbay are a way below the target figures (the Great Britain average).
For 2020 earnings by residence for full time workers was £468.90 against the target of
£587.10 and has fallen by £37.90 on Torbay’s figure of £506.80 for 2019.

o Earnings by workplace was £490.30 against a target of £586.70 in 2020. Torbay has
increased on the previous year’s average of £484.30 by £6. Great Britain’s average has
increased by £0.30 this year.

o The percentage of those claiming out of work benefits at the end of 2020/21 was 7.3%
against the target of 6.5% (Great Britain’s monthly average). The lowest figure this
performance indicator fell to over the year, was 6.9%.

e Tackling climate change

o Residual household waste for quarter 4 2020/21 was at 136kg per household, a decrease
on the same period of the previous year which was 143kg but above the target of 120kg.

o Household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting was at 37.70% for quarter 4 of
2020/21. This is a decrease when compared to the same period the previous year 40.25%,
and below the target of 50.00%.

e A Council fit for the future

o The number of corporate complaints logged by the Information Compliance Team in
2020/21 was 300. This equates to complaints from 2.2 people per 1000 residents in
Torbay. It is much less than the previous year when 456 stage one complaints were logged.

10
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o The percentage of corporate complaints that were dealt with on time fell to 33% for
quarter 4 2020/21 from 83% for the same period the previous year. Over the whole of
2020/21, 54% of complaints were dealt with on time.

Coronavirus (COVID19)

The 2020/21 Accounts with a balance sheet date of 31 March 2021 are produced with the ongoing
significant financial and performance uncertainty arising from the coronavirus pandemic. As the future
economic and societal impact of the pandemic are all unknown, this uncertainty will influence any future
look at Council’s financial position.

During 2020/21 the Council due to its pandemic response incurred costs over a range of services in proving
more services and supporting providers and its community. The Council’s own income has been impacted
including its income from car parking and council tax collection. To offset these costs and lost income the
Council has received MHCLG un-ringfenced Covid support funding of £12m (of which £5m was received in
March 2020) and over £2m compensation for lost “sales, fees and charges” income such as car parking.
There was no support for reduced rental income. The Council’s investment properties continued to
generate a surplus, albeit reduced, however the diversification of the council’s investment properties over
several sectors provided protection. The Council also received significant additional grant funding for a
range of Covid specific activities.

The Council acted as “agent” for central government in distributing over £60m of financial support to
businesses during the year and actioned NNDR reliefs of £24m to the retail, leisure, and hospitality sectors.

The key areas of impact are as follows:

Provision of Services:

The Council has reacted to the pandemic in several ways. This has included the establishment of an excess
death facility and support to the community included the supply of PPE, support to food banks and grants
to voluntary organisations.

The key service impacted was adult social care in supporting providers and in particular care homes and
joint working with health partners in relation to support and care for vulnerable adults.

Most schools in Torbay were closed for periods of the year apart from a low-level provision for children of
key workers.

Several other services are impacted that are closely linked to travel restrictions and social isolation
requirements. As examples Torre Abbey has been closed, along with some car parks, a number of events

cancelled, and weddings not supported by the Registrars service.

The Council established a recovery group to ensure that services and the community can return to previous
service provision levels as the pandemic permits.

COVID Grants

The Council received several COVID related grants for specific activities or support which are part of the
Council’s income and expenditure in 2020/21 and included where appropriate in Note 32. These included:

11
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£1.6m Hardship Fund to support council tax support scheme claimants
£5.0m Infection Control Grant to support care providers
£0.1m Reopening High Streets Fund

£0.9m Test and Trace Grant

£0.2m Emergency Assistance Grant

£0.1m Surge Enforcement Funding

£0.2m Clinically Vulnerable Support Grant

£3.1m Contain Outbreak Management Fund

£0.5m Winter Spend Grant

£0.5m Rapid Testing grant for care providers

£0.4m Workforce Capacity grant for care providers
£0.3m Community Testing grant

£0.3m Leisure (Operators) Support grant.

£1.8m Discretionary Business Grants

£2.5m Discretionary Business Restrictions Grant

Acting as “agent” on behalf of the BEIS administered £37m of Business Grants and £24m of Business
Restrictions Grants in 2020/21. On behalf of MHCG the Council administered £0.2m of Test and Trace

isolation payments. To administer and make these payments was a significant task for the Council.

Council Workforce

The primary impact of the pandemic is that most staff worked from home. However, as the Council had
invested in IT that supports flexible working this change has not had a fundamental impact on the work of
the Council.

Several staff in services that were closed for periods of the year were redeployed to help with support for
the community and increased volume of contact with the Council.

The Council has, to date, a very low level of staff absence due to Coronavirus.

Supply Chains

In addition to the issues for adult social care providers there have only been a few suppliers who have
reported financial difficulty; however, the Council has complied with the Cabinet office guidance. Clennon
Valley leisure centre and the Riviera Centre have been supported along with concessionary bus fare
operators.

Collection Fund

The economic impact of the pandemic had an impact on the Council’s income from its collection fund —
both council tax and business rates (NNDR). COVID restrictions resulted in Courts being shut until winter
which limited the Council’s collection activity. In addition, the Council opted not to use enforcement agents
until after the last step of the 2021 “roadmap”.

For Business rates, central government provided a 100% relief scheme for all businesses in the retail,
leisure, and hospitality sectors of £24m which is about 2/3rds of the business rates due to be collected. Of

the balance, collection was lower than expected with total NNDR arrears increasing in the year.

For Council Tax there was an increase in claims for Council Tax Support and a reduction in collection with
total Council tax arrears increasing in the year.

12
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Central Government provided some compensation for irrecoverable losses such as higher CTSS claims. To
mitigate the impact of the possible losses from collection, legislation has been passed to allow Council’s to
spread the cost of these losses over the next three financial years. (The Local Authority (Collection Fund
Surplus/Deficit) (Coronavirus) Regulations 2020 (Sl 2020/1202)). To mitigate this cost the Council has
allocated £3.5m to a Collection Fund reserve in 2020/21.

Reserves, financial performance and financial position

As a result of the impact of the pandemic, the council revised its budget in July 2020 for 2020/21 to reflect
the areas of increased spend and lost income offset by central government support. Subsequent 2020/21
budget monitoring was compared to this revised budget.

The full ongoing financial impact of the pandemic of the council in 2021/22 and future years is uncertain.
The Council’s 2021/22 budget included £8m of costs and lost income related to the ongoing economic
impact of the pandemic. The Council’s latest Medium Term Resource Plan assumes an ongoing, but
reducing, financial impact of the pandemic.

As a result of its revenue outturn position, in addition to the £3.5m allocated to a collection fund reserve,
the Council has also allocated £1.6m to a COVID reserve and has carried forward any COVID related grants
that were unspent as at year end.

Given the uncertainty over the level of government support, the full level of additional expenditure and the
full impact on income the impact on the council’s reserves and financial position is not known. However,

the Council will continue to monitor and report on the financial impact and will include the consideration
of any impact in future years in its medium-term financial planning.

Our Financial Performance

Financial Context

Torbay Council is responsible for managing cash flows and assets of over £1 billion.
The Council:

e Collects £89m of Council Tax (E86m 19/20) which is an in-year collection rate of 95.1% (95.7%
19/20) and £10m (£32m 19/20) of National Non-Domestic Rates (Business Rates) which is an in-
year collection rate of 88.0% (95.1% 19/20).

e Holds over £600m of non-current assets including of £338m operational assets for delivering
services, £34m of heritage assets and £203m of investment property which generates a gross rent
of £13m annually.

e In 2020/21 spent over £27m on capital projects and loans for a capital purpose funded from capital
receipts, grants, contributions and borrowing.

e In 2020/21 spent over £350m on its revenue budget (its day to day spend) on a wide range of
services.

e Generates over £50m of fees, charges, rental, and other income used to fund the delivery of its
services
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On a national level changes in funding, services and legislation by the Government continue to impact on
the Council, its partners, and residents. The national financial impact of the pandemic — up to £400 billion
has shortened central government financial planning. It is still very uncertain what the Council’s future
funding will be in future years. For 2020/21 and again for 2021/22 there was a one year “Spending Round”
which did give an inflationary increase in funding to local government plus additional funding for social
care. The 2019 national Spending Review which would have allocated the total central government
funding for local government for three years has been delayed to 2021. MHCLG intends to introduce a new
funding formula to allocate the total funding between councils and have issued several consultation
documents on the design of the formula which the Council has responded to. In addition, MHCLG intends
to introduce a 75% NNDR retention system in which local Councils bear 75% of the risks/reward of changes
in local NNDR income and have, again, issued several consultation documents on the design of the scheme.
However, the implementation of both changes has again been delayed to 2022/23 at the earliest.

Revenue Budget 2020/21

In February 2020, the Council set a budget for 2020/21 of £116m (compared to a budget of £111m in
2019/20). As part of the budget the Council increased its childrens’ social care budget by over £9m which
included £2m of investment in the service. This required budget reductions in other services to achieve a
balanced budget. There is also an estimated funding gap up to £14m for the following three years from
2022/23. The Council has already started the process of meeting the significant financial challenges
through identifying and implementing service changes and income generation opportunities, and, in some
case, service reductions.

The Council raised its level of Council Tax by 3.99% which included a 2% “precept” for adult social care.
This resulted in the Council setting its share of the Council Tax for a Band D property at £1,563.01,
(£1,503.04 19/20).

The table below shows how the Council’s revenue budget was funded in 2020/21.

fm fm
Net Budget Requirement 111 116
New Homes Bonus and other general grants (1) (1)
NNDR Rate Retention (33) (34)
Revenue Support Grant (6) (7)
Council Tax (69) (72)
Collection Fund (surplus)/deficit (2) (2)

Torbay Funding,2020/21 (%)
3%

NNDR
29%

Council Tax

RSG
62%

6%
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Council Spending in 2020/21

The table below provides a summary of the budget and expenditure by service in 2020/21, together with
the variances against each budget at the end of the year compared to the revised 2020/21 budget. The
charts below show the net expenditure by service and the budget variance at 31 March 2021.

1. Adult Social Care 38,907 38,575 (332)
2. Public Health 10,392 10,227 (165)
3. Children's Services 47,321 41,620 (5,701)
4. Community Services 2,748 2,327 (421)
5. Corporate Services 4,369 5,627 1,258
6. Customer Services 2,880 3,044 164
7. Investment Portfolio (4,641) (4,204) 437
Sub Total — Corporate Services 5,356 6,794 1,438
8. Finance (4,032) (6,173) (2,141)
9. Central COVID costs & grants (6,223) (3,623) 2,600
Sub Total — Finance (10,255) (9,796) 459
10. Business Services 16,816 17,373 557
11. Planning and Transport 7,331 7,005 (326)
Sub Total - Place 24147 24,378 231
Revenue sub total 115,868 111,798 (4,070)
Sources of Finance (115,868) (121,720) (5,852)
Revenue total 0 (9,922) (9,922)
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Additional Items £000
12 Transfers per Budget 2021/22 7,100
13 Transfers to earmarked reserves 2,700
14 Balance to General Fund 122
Net Overspend / (underspend) 0

Net Expenditure 2020/21

Public Health
Corporate Services &
Finance

Place \/

Adult Social Care

Childrens' Services

REVENUE VARIANCE
(£'000)
Adult Social Care (332)
Business Services L BEYY
Children's Services (5,701)
Community Services (421)
Corporate Services e 1,258
Customer Services B 164
Finance (2,141)
Investment Portfolio |l 437
Planning and Transport (326)
Public Health (165)
(7,000) (6,000) (5,000) (4,000) (3,000) (2,000) (1,000) 0 1,000 2,000

The two “headlines” for 2020/21 were the underspend in children social care which was the result of the
investment and improvements in the service over the past two years. There was both a reduction in total
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looked after children and, within the total of looked after children, the number of children in residential
care was halved by the transfer of the child to alternative care. The second key factor was the impact of
the pandemic on the council income and expenditure and the subsequent levels of financial support from
central government.

The schools’ higher needs block in the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) continues to be under financial
pressure because of an increasing level of referrals from schools for higher needs support for children. For
2020/21 there was an overspend of £2.0, after the one off £0.5m “disapplication” transfer of funds
between the funding blocks in the DSG.

The Council does not receive any funding for schools therefore the overspend will remain in the DSG to be
funded in future years and is not a cost that the Council will fund. As a result, the DSG reserve is a £5.8m
deficit by the end of 2020/21. This reserve, under statutory instrument, is now reported for 2020/21 and
the following two years as an unusable reserve. Despite this reclassification on the balance sheet the deficit
remains to be funded.

Overall, the Council’s financial performance in 2020/21 was an underspend of £9.9m that has primarily
been transferred to reserves of which £5.1m is specifically related to earmarked reserves for future COVID
costs and COVID related lost council tax and business rate income.

Capital Plan

The Council spent £27m on capital expenditure in 2020/21 (£115m 19/20) of which nil (E67m 19/20) was
Investment Properties and £2m loans for a capital purpose (£10m in 19/20). This spend was funded as
shown in the table below.

fm fm fm
Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 21 14 (7)
Grants 18 12 (6)
Other Contributions 1 1 0
Revenue and Reserves 1 1 0
Capital Receipts 1 (1) (2)
Total Funding 42 27 (15)

Of the £27m, £21m was added to the value of the Council’s non-current assets (before any in-year
revaluation) — these are primarily land, buildings, and investment properties. The balance of £6m was
capital expenditure on assets the Council does not recognise as its own (such as academy schools), capital
grants and loans for a capital purpose. A summary of capital expenditure in 2020/21 is shown below.
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Thriving People Loans to subsidiary for housing, disabled facilities grant, 7

expansion of building at a number of schools
Harbour View hotel, Claylands, Debenhams purchase

- 17

Thriving Economy and highway improvements
Tackling Climate Change Purchase of vehicles for recycling and waste collection 2
Council Fit for the Future Capital repairs and loan to subsidiary 1
Total 27

Torbay “Group” Companies — Overview of Financial Performance

The Council has interests in several companies as shown in the table below which also includes an overview
of these companies’ financial performance in the year, based on draft 2020/21 accounts. On 1t July 2020
SWISCo, a subsidiary company of the Council, started operating taking on the services previously provided
by TOR2. During the year both TorVista Homes, which achieved “Registered Provider” status in March
2021, and TEDC Developments to construct and rent affordable housing became operational. In addition,
the Council took control of the board of the Riviera International Conference Centre company after the
resignation of the previous board linked to the new contract for the operation of the Centre.

TDA Group: Torbay
Economic Development
Company Ltd, trading as
TDA. Includes:

TDA, Kings Ash Holdings,
Complete Facilities
Management Services, C &
A Consultancy, Business
Centres South West, TEDC
Developments and
Torvista Homes.

SWISCo limited (South
West Integrated Services Subsidiary 100% 11.8 (13.3) 0.8 (13.3)
Company)

Riviera International
Conference Centre limited Subsidiary 100% 0.3 0 0 0

Subsidiary
(Consolidated
for the TDA
Group)

100% 9.1 0.5 15.4 7.2

TOR2 Ltd — year to 30 June
2020
CSW Group Ltd

Associate 19.99% 13.3 (1.4) 0.2 (2.8)

Associate 25% 6.6 (11.0) 0 (19.9)

The Council has also produced group accounts. For the year 2020/21 the values of the Council’s
subsidiaries assets and liabilities in relation to the Council’s own balance sheet are relatively small (under
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3% of Council’s non-current assets).
Schools

In September 2020 Brixham Church of England Primary School converted to academy status. The Council,
as at 31 March 2021, has 8 schools (9 in 19/20) that are reflected in the Council’s accounts, both within its
Income and Expenditure Statement and its Balance Sheet. These are 5 primary schools, 2 secondary
schools and 1 special school. The 8 schools by “ownership” are five community schools, one voluntary
aided and two foundation. These schools are funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant which for 2020/21 is
£41m compared with £40m in 2019/20. The level of earmarked school reserves as at 31 March 2021 is
£1.4m compared with £0.1m in 2019/20. Further detail on school asset recognition and the use of
Dedicated School Grant in 2020/21 are included in the notes to the accounts.

Economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

The Council reports on its financial performance and economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of
resources over the financial year in several reports. Reports presented to the Council’s Audit Committee.
Including:

- Internal Audit’s Annual Report and mid-year review

- Annual Governance Statement

- External Audit’s Audit Findings Report including a value for money conclusion
- Review of risk management

- Review of Council performance based on a basket of indicators.

Audit Committee agenda and minutes are available on the Council’s website

The Council publishes extensive information on its expenditure including details of payments in excess of
£500 and details of the Council’s pay policy can be found on the council’s web site.

Overview of Financial Performance in 2020/21

This was a very challenging financial year for the Council from the impact of the pandemic on both its
expenditure and income. The Council revised its budget in July to reflect the anticipated financial impacts
on its income and expenditure. The risk associated with this impact was mitigated during the year by
MHCLG providing more funding to the Council including a 75% sales, fees, and charges income
compensation scheme.

In addition, as discussed earlier the Council was allocated a significant number of pandemic funding for
specific activities and acted as “agent” for the distribution of over £60m of support for businesses and
£24m of NNDR relief for the retail, leisure, and hospitality sector.

The Council is a partner in an agreement with the Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust (which
operates as an Integrated Care Organisation providing adult social care services for Torbay Council as well
as community and adult health services) and the Devon Clinical Commissioning Group. In 2019/20 a three-
year agreement was agreed for the three years from 2020/21 where the Council pays a fixed amount to the
ICO which provided all partners with financial certainty.

As a direct result of the HM Treasury consultation of the use of borrowing from the PWLB “primarily for
yield” the Council has now stopped purchases from its Investment Fund. The budgeted net surplus in

2020/21 was £4.6m.

The Council has had a long-held aspiration to support affordable housing. In July 2019 Council agreed to
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use its existing subsidiary TDA to develop and then rent affordable housing. TDA set up Torvista Homes and
TEDC Developments as subsidiary companies to deliver these houses. In March 2021 Torvista Homes
achieved “registered provider” status from Homes England. As at end of March 2021 these companies had
both started to incur expenditure and Torvista had purchased several properties funded from government
grants and borrowing from the Council.

In previous years, Council schools converted to Academy status and are now fully independent of the
Council. In Torbay, by 31st March 2021, a total of 32 schools had converted with one further conversion in
2020/21.

The Council’s gross expenditure in the year was over £350m for revenue (day to day) spend and £27m for
capital (spend on long term assets such as roads and schools).

The Council’s employees can be members of the Devon County Council Local Government Pension Scheme.
As a defined benefit scheme, the Council is liable for any surplus or deficit on the fund. The Council’s
liability is calculated on an annual basis by the fund’s actuary. This value estimates the liability of the
Council if all liabilities were to be realised at a point in time. The impact on the Council is spread over a long
period of time (i.e., over current, and future pensioners lives) with the Council reducing the deficit by its
employers’ contributions to the fund over the long term (over 14 years from April 2020). A triennial review
of the fund took place as at 31st March 2019 with changes to the Council’s employer contribution rate
from April 2020 resulting in an increased “primary rate” more than offset by a lower “secondary” rate.

The Council’s net pension liability as at 31st March 2021, as calculated under IFRS19 which is a different
basis to the triennial review, is assessed at £211m which is a £43m increase over the previous year
(compared to a £11m decrease in 19/20). This is primarily due to an increase in the liability of £114m
primarily due to actuarial changes in financial assumptions offset, in part, by an increase in the value of the
assets of £71m primarily due to increased returns on those assets as at 31° March 2021.

There were significant changes in Torbay’s economy arising from the pandemic. These were offset in part
by the significant support to businesses from central government. These changes impacted on several of
the council’s income streams such as car park income and local tax collection.

As economic conditions in 2020/21 were significantly impacted there have been changes in some of the
Councils’ rented property values.

The “Brexit” national changes from January 2021 did not appear to have an impact on the Council’s
financial position, although the Council will continue to monitor any impact.

For 2020/21 there were not any changes in IFRS that impacted on the accounting policies relevant to
Torbay’s accounts. The introduction of a new standard for leases (IFRS16) has again been deferred, this
time to 2022/23.

The Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) is the Councils income and
expenditure presented on an IFRS basis. This includes earlier recognition of grants, based on conditions
attached to the grant rather than matching the grant to expenditure and several “noncash” items such as
depreciation and pension assumptions, which should then allow the Council’s accounts to be comparable
to other sector accounts. The total for the Provision of Services for 2020/21 is a deficit of £12m (£12m
19/20). The key reason for this deficit is depreciation and impairment charges of £17m.

The total from the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement is reflected in the Movement of
Reserves statement which then adds the impact of any reserve movements to usable reserves and
unusable reserves to get to the “bottom line” Council position for 2020/21. Within this is the reversal of a
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number of accounting entries made under IFRS that appear in the Council’s Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure statement such as depreciation and pension assumptions, which are allowed, under statute, to
be reversed to ensure that these entries do not have a “cash” impact on the Council Taxpayer. After these
adjustments the Council’s net outturn for the year was a break-even position, which matches the Council’s
management financial reporting position. This statement shows that the Council’s usable reserves had a
net increase of £30m. This was primarily a net increase of £6m from capital grants, capital receipts
(including deferred capital receipts) to fund capital expenditure in year and a net increase in earmarked
revenue reserves of £23m linked in part to an increase in unused ring-fenced grants as at year end.

On the balance sheet there were some significant changes in year. There was a net increase of £35m in the
value of the Council’s current assets offset by a £31m increase in the value of the Council’s current
liabilities mostly due to COVID related grants and funding. There was a £43m increase in the Council’s net
pension liability primarily arising from changes in actuarial assumptions used to calculate the liability. The
Council’s General Fund reserve increased to £5.7m, which is equivalent to 5% of the Council’s 2021/22 net
revenue budget.

The cash flows associated with central government COVID funding have resulted in several items on the
balance sheet that are higher than normal. These include in creditors £13m of business grants received by
the Council “acting as “agent” in 2020/21 but not spent, £11m of S31 NNDR compensation grant due to
MHCLG and in earmarked reserves £12m of S31 NNDR grant which is included on a short-term basis to
match the grant to the year in which the cost is recognised in the Collection Fund and by £5.1m for two
COVID specific reserves for future costs and lost income in the Collection Fund.

Overall, the Council’s net assets were lower than the previous year by £38m resulting in a negative net
worth of (£1.7m) compared to £37m in 2019/20. Of the increase £43m related to the net increase in the
Council’s pension liability.

As a result of a change in legislation (The School and Local Authority (Capital Finance and Accounting)
(England) (Amendment) Regulations SI 2020/1212) the accumulated negative balance in the Dedicated
School Grant of £5.8m has now been reclassified as an unusable reserve to better reflect that, although the
negative balance is included on a council’s balance sheet, it is not a liability the council has to fund.

Torbay has a negative net worth position primarily because of the pension liability. This doesn't mean
Torbay is not a going concern. Councils are required to operate within the framework set out in the Local
Government Acts and Torbay will continue to budget for a positive General Fund balance but is not
required to maintain a positive net worth. (When a Council has a negative net worth, this indicates that
future taxpayers (whether through Council Tax or indirectly through government grants) will be funding
some of the cost of providing services in the past.) The Pension Liability of £211m does not represent an
immediate call on the Authority's reserves and is a snap-shot valuation in time based on assumptions. The
true value of the deficit is assessed on a triennial basis with contribution rates set to recover the balance
over the longer-term. This 'snapshot' approach to valuing the pension deficit is very volatile as the changes
in the value of liability over the past few years in the Council’s accounts has illustrated.

In terms of the Council as a going concern, it is expected that future cash flows, aligned with authority’s
budget processes, will provide sufficient resources to finance future liabilities as they fall due.

Forward Financial look

The Council has a rolling three-year Medium-Term Resource Plan which supports service planning for
future years.

The ongoing impact of the pandemic is expected to result in higher costs and lost income. The Council’s
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2021/22 budget included £8m of COVID related costs and lost income. The impact of these is forecast to
reduce over the next few years but there could be a longer-term impact on some income and costs such as
Council Tax support scheme claims, car park and rental income.

In the absence of a three-year Spending Review, the Government has again provided details of Revenue
Support Grant to the Council for just one year. The Spending Review is now expected to be in 2021 and for
at least three years, which should help the Council’s ability to effectively plan. Inevitably the central
government expenditure on the COVID pandemic along with the expected significant economic downturn
will have an impact on the national fiscal position which could impact on future year local government
funding settlements.

In addition, MHCLG have also delayed the introduction of a new funding formula to allocate the total
funding between councils to 2022/23 at the earliest. The proposed new 75% NNDR retention system in
which local Councils bear 75% of the risks/reward of changes in local NNDR income has also been delayed
to 2022/23 at the earliest.

The Medium-Term Resource Plan (April 2021 update) provides details of the number of significant issues
and risks that are impacting on the Council, its finances, and its service delivery:

In addition to the significant funding uncertainties listed in the overview section of this plan in particular
the Spending Review 2021 review, new funding formula and impact of 75% NNDR retention and the
potential changes in services currently now provided by SWISCo, other significant financial planning risks
that may affect the projections are likely to be:

e Inflation runs at a much higher rate than the rates that have been assumed,
e Borrowing costs are higher than anticipated in any Business case for capital expenditure.

e Income projections built into the budget may not be achievable due to factors outside of the
council’s control e.g., a worsening economic outlook, further reduction in investment yields.

e Ongoing demand and cost of social care both Children’s and Adults.
e Ongoing impact of COVID on Council services and income

e Impact of major changes in Adult Social Care such as the future “Green Paper” and the future of
the Better Care Fund.

e Achievement of the Council’s transformation projects in both their timing and income target

e Potential revenue costs of major capital schemes and the risk of overspends on major capital
projects.

e Risk of achievement of income targets on major capital investment projects, those funded from
prudential borrowing where there is a known additional MRP and interest cost.

e Achievement of 2021/22 and future year budget savings

e Financial Performance of the Integrated Care Organisation and the Council’s future adult social
care cost.
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2023 Pension actuarial Review

e Future year increases to the Living Wage

e Collection fund balances — collection of NNDR and Council Tax
e Risk of exposure of any major legal claims against the Council
e Impact of the Devon-wide NHS changes on Torbay

e Impact from the TDA and its related companies’ expansion into new trading areas including
housing

e Impact of major schemes linked to Regeneration
e Impact of Council ownership of SWISCo

e Impact of Ofsted judgement of “inadequate” for children’s social care

Reserve levels “resilience” to future financial pressures

The combination of uncertainty of funding and rising demand is a major challenge for the Council as, to
achieve the savings required, there will be an impact on the quantity and quality of services the Council will
be able to provide in the future. The forecast level of savings required to achieve a balanced budget for
2022/23 to 2024/25 is over £14 m.

The Medium-Term Resource Plan provides a summary of projected revenue income and expenditure for
the next three financial years.

Revenue Support Grant, NNDR & Council Tax (116) (117) (118) (120)
Estimated Expenditure 116 122 131 134
Total Estimated Cumulative Funding Gap 0 5 13 14
In- year Funding Gap ‘ 0 ‘ 5 ‘ 8 ‘ 1

To meet this ongoing challenge the Council had previously established a Transformation Board and a
Redesign Board to bring forward and implement a range of transformation projects aimed at meeting the
required budget reductions but also, where possible, improve service performance. The Transformation
Board considers a wide range of projects which could result in alternative service delivery, alternative
levels of service provided and/or service providers.

The Council has an approved Capital Plan that is updated throughout the year with any new funding or

schemes. A summary of capital spend (as approved by Council in February 2021) over the next three years,
is summarised below.
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Total Capital Expenditure \ 125 106 28

In March 2020 HM Treasury issued a consultation and, in November, a response on changes to PWLB
borrowing terms with the purpose of stopping councils borrowing to invest in commercial property (“debt
for yield”) and CIPFA subsequently issued a statement that requested that the “spirit” of the consultation is
adhered to with immediate effect. As a result, the Council ceased to purchase commercial property itself
and the Capital plan was reduced by £65m.

Borrowing and Investments

The Council undertakes borrowing to support its capital expenditure. As at 31 March 2021 the Council had
£392m of borrowing, primarily from the Public Works Loans Board, a decrease of £3m in year. In addition,
it had a long-term liability of £5m to the PFI contractor for The Spires (formerly Westlands) and Homelands
schools and a liability of £12m in relation to the Council’s share of the Energy from Waste Facility in
Plymouth. The Council had £77m (£66m in 2019/20) of cash investments at year end with a net debt
position including PFI liabilities of £332m (compared with £347m in 2019/20).

The cash levels were higher in the year primarily because of the timing of the receipt and spend of
pandemic related funding. In addition, the Council’s capital expenditure in the year was lower than in
recent years which resulted in no need to borrow in year.

The control over the level of Council borrowing is supported by the Prudential Code where the Council has
to set limits in relation to its treasury management including limits for long-term borrowing and liabilities
to ensure that this is prudent and affordable. One of these indicators is a calculation called the Capital
Financing Requirement which shows the Council’s underlying need to borrow based on previous decisions
on capital expenditure and borrowing offset by any repayment of principal made or other capital funding
used. The key figures, in relation to borrowing and capital financing, are as follows:

Balance Sheet Values: (principal)

External Borrowing * 395 392
Long Term Liabilities (PFI) 18 17
External Investments * (66) (77)
Net Debt 347 332
Treasury Management Limits:

Capital Financing Requirement 413 420
Authorised Limit 520 710
Operational Limit 470 590
Revenue Income & Expenditure: 2019/20 2020/21
Interest Receivable (from treasury management activity) (1.3) (0.5)
Interest Payable 10.8 11.8
MRP Repayment (including PFI) 53 7.2
Ratio of net financing costs to net revenue (excluding 13% 16%
revenue contributions to capital).

* note: these costs are per Treasury Management outturn report which excludes the accounting adjustments required for statutory reporting such
as fair value adjustments.
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The level of Council borrowing reflects the Council’s capital financing requirement plus the borrowing
required by the approved four-year Capital Plan. The Council’s investments and other cash holdings are
sufficient to meet the Council’s short term cash requirements for revenue expenditure and any “cash
backed” balance sheet items such as reserves and working capital. Additional borrowing to finance the
Council’s approved capital plan will be required as schemes, financed from borrowing, progress. These
include regeneration schemes and potential finance required for the Council’s housing strategy.

Significant Provisions, contingencies, or insurance contracts

The Council has provisions at year end of £4.6m (£5.1m in 19/20). These are primarily in relation to
insurance claims (submitted to the Council but are currently being investigated) and in relation to the
Council’s share of NNDR appeals.

The Council has given several pensions guarantees as Council staff transferred to other bodies. These are a
type of derivative liability and are unlikely to result in a cash payment if the other body is solvent. The
Council has given a pension guarantee to TDA whereby the Council has assessed a liability to the value of
the TDA’s IAS19 pension valuation. As owner or part owner of several limited companies the Council has
some exposure to risk, but this is limited by share or guarantee.

Signed by: Dated: 03 April 2023
Rl
; 2
N
Martin Phillips

Director of Finance
Torbay Council
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FINANCIAL CERTIFICATES

The Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

The Council’s Responsibilities

The Council is required:-

+ to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of
its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council, that officer

is the Council’s Chief Finance Officer

+ to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient, and effective use of resources and safeguard

its assets

+ approve the Statement of Accounts

Audit Committee Approval of the Statement of Accounts 2020/21

| confirm that the Council completed its approval process of the Statement of Accounts 2020/2021 on
the 6 December 2021 at a meeting of the Council’'s Audit Committee.

Councillor Robert Loxton
Chair of Audit Committee
03 April 2023
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The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s statement of accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (Code of Practice).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Finance Officer has:-
¢ selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
¢ made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

¢ complied with the Code of Practice.

The Chief Finance Officer has also:-
¢ Kkept proper accounting records which were up to date;

+ taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Chief Finance Officer’s Statement

The Statement of Accounts as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations is set out on pages 26
to page 131 and has been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies which are set out, if
significant, on pages 106 to 119. In my opinion it is a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Council at 31st March 2021 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2021.

The accounts are audited by the Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton LLP.

The Statement of Accounts 2020/21 were authorised for issue on the 31 July 2021. This is also the
date up to which events after the balance sheet date have been considered.

Aokl

Martin Phillips
Chief Finance Officer
31 July 2021

The Statement of Accounts 2020/21 were authorised for approval by Members on the 6 December

2021 and for publication once the audit opinion has been received. This is also the date up to which
events after the balance sheet date will be considered.

MOM&N "

Martin Phillips
Chief Finance Officer
3 April 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Torbay Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Torbay Council (the ‘Authority’) and its subsidiaries (the
‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement, the Collection Fund Summary Account, the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the
Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet and the Group
Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United
Kingdom 2020/21.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Authority as at 31 March
2021 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Authority’s expenditure and income for
the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of Audit Practice”)
approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of
our report. We are independent of the group and the Authority in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern.

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Director of Finance’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority or
group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Authority or the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Director of Finance’s conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set
out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom
2020/21 that the Authority and group’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern
basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided by the
group and the Authority. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit
of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020) on
the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the
reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the group and Authority and the group and
Authority’s disclosures over the going concern period.
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Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s or
the group’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Director of Finance’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

The responsibilities of the Director of Finance with respect to going concern are described in the
‘Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Finance and Those Charged with Governance for the
financial statements’ section of this report.

Other information

The Director of Finance is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the Authority financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the
Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘delivering good governance in Local
Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or
inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to
consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are
satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Authority, the other information published together with the financial
statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception.
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

e we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

¢ we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
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e we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law
under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the
conclusion of the audit; or;

e we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Finance and Those Charged with Governance for the
financial statements

As explained in the Financial Certificates, the Authority is required to make arrangements for the
proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility
for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Director of Finance. The
Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes
the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code
of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Director of Finance determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Finance is responsible for assessing the
Authority’s and the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention
by government that the services provided by the Authority and the group will no longer be provided.

The Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those Charged with Governance are
responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud:

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in
respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK).

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed
below:

o We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
group and Authority and determined that the most significant ,which are directly relevant to specific
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assertions in the financial statements, are those related to the reporting frameworks (international
accounting standards as interpreted and adapted by the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014,
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Act 2003, the Local
Government Act 1972, the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local
Government Finance Act 1992) and the Local Government Finance Act 2012.

o We enquired of senior officers and the Audit Committee, concerning the group and Authority’s
policies and procedures relating to:
¢ the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

¢ the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

o the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with
laws and regulations.

o We enquired of senior officers and the Audit Committee, whether they were aware of any
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any knowledge of
actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

o We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority and group’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating officers’ incentives and opportunities
for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of
management override of controls. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to:

e Journals posted by users with administration access rights
o Material management estimates and judgements
e Our audit procedures involved:

¢ evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Director of Finance has in place to
prevent and detect fraud;

e journal entry testing, with a focus on unusual and high risk journals, including those identified
as those posted by senior personnel, those with administration rights on the system, those
made by unusual posters or in unusual accounts combinations;

¢ challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting
estimates in respect of land and buildings, investment property and defined benefit pensions
liability valuations, treatment of pension guarantees;

e assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement item.

o These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to
fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities
that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the
further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

e The team communications in respect of potential non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, including the potential for fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition, and the
significant accounting estimates related to land and buildings, investment property, treatment of
pension guarantee and defined benefit pensions liability valuations.

o Assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the group and
Authority’s engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's:

¢ understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and
complexity through appropriate training and participation

e knowledge of the local government sector
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e understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority and group
including:

o the provisions of the applicable legislation
e guidance issued by CIPFA, LASAAC and SOLACE
o the applicable statutory provisions.
¢ In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

¢ the Authority and group’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its
services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions, account
balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in risks
of material misstatement.

e The Authority and group's control environment, including the policies and procedures
implemented by the Authority and group to ensure compliance with the requirements of the
financial reporting framework.

e For components at which audit procedures were performed, we requested component auditors to
report to us instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that gave rise to a risk of
material misstatement of the group financial statements. No such matters were identified by the
component auditors.

Matter on which we are required to report by exception — the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been
able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to
review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied
that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects
of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the
guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021. This guidance sets out the
arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these
arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

¢ Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can
continue to deliver its services;

e Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly
manages its risks; and

e Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its
costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.
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We documented our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these
three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and
commentary in our Auditor's Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we have considered whether
there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Audit certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of Torbay Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of
Audit Practice.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments
Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority
and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Signature: to]jﬂufﬁc&feﬂt

Paul Dossett, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

London

Date: 05 April 2023
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Core Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities
raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the
“accounting” cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

46.9 (14.2) 32.7 | Adults’ Services 53.7 (14.4) 39.3
101.8 (54.6) 47.2 | Childrens’ Services 101.1 (53.7) 474
68.8 (57.8) 11.0 | Corporate Services 65.6 (57.1) 8.5
8.2 (16.6) (8.4) | Finance 32.2 (35.5) (3.3)
55.7 (21.6) 34.1 | Place 48.7 (19.3) 294
9.0 (0.2) 8.8 | Public Health 8.4 0 8.4
290.4 | (165.0) 125.4 | Cost of Services 309.7 (180.0) 129.7
3.5 (3.5) 0 | Other Operating Income & See ™ 6.8 (2.8) 4.0
Expenditure below
29.2 (18.4) 10.8 | Financing and Investment 11 38.3 (29.5) 8.8
Income and Expenditure
0.1 (124.3) (124.2) | Taxation and Non-Specific Grant | 12 0 (130.2) (130.2)
Income and expenditure
323.2 (311.2) 12.0 | (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision 354.8 (342.5) 12.3
of Services
(7.6) | (Surplus)/Deficit on revaluation 26 (8.4)
on Non-Current Assets (PPE)
2.2 | Impairment losses on non- 26 3.6
current assets charged to the
revaluation reserve
(15.4) | Remeasurement of net defined 30.8
pension liabilities
(20.8) | Other Comprehensive Income 26.0
and Expenditure
(8.8) | Total (Surplus)/Deficit in 38.3
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Note ** - includes Brixham Town Council precept of £355,006
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Movement in Reserves Statement

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e., those that can be applied to
fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable’ reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic
cost of providing the Council’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from
the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting. The Net Increase /Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the council.

Balance as at 31st March 2019 brought 4.6 31.0 35.6 0.8 8.7 451 (17.3) 27.8
forward

Movement in Reserves during 2019/20

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services (12.0) 0 (12.0) 0 0 (12.0) 0 (12.0)
(accounting basis)

Other Comprehensive Expenditure and 0 0 0 0 0 0 20.8 20.8
Income

(see C I&E Statement)

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and (12.0) 0 (12.0) 0 0 (12.0) 20.8 8.8
Income

Adjustments between accounting basis & 14.2 0 14.2 (0.4) 1.1 14.9 (14.9) 0
funding basis under regulations (Note 9)

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to 2.2 0 2.2 (0.4) 1.1 2.9 5.9 8.8
Earmarked Reserves

Transfers (to)from Earmarked Reserves (Note (2.2) 3.3 1.1 0 0 1.1 (1.1) 0
10)

Increase/(Decrease) in Year 0 3.3 3.3 (0.4) 1.1 4.0 4.8 8.8
Balance as at 31st March 2020 carried 4.6 34.3 38.9 0.4 9.8 49.1 (12.5) 36.6
forward

*Note: Under statute the balance on the ‘Dedicated Schools Grant Deficit Reserve’ has been transferred to the ‘Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account’, this account is
classified as an unusable reserve. Under the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2020 as part of the ring-fenced dedicated schools grant (DSG), this deficit
cannot be funded from Council general fund but will need to be funded from future year DSG.

Deferred Capital Receipts have been reclassified as Unusable Reserves.
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Movement in Reserves Statement

Balance as at 31st March 2020 brought 4.6 34.3 38.9 0.4 9.8 491 (12.5) 36.6
forward

Movement in Reserves during 2020/21

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services (12.3) 0 (12.3) 0 0 (12.3) 0 (12.3)
(accounting basis)

Other Comprehensive Expenditure and 0 0 0 0 0 0 (26.0) (26.0)
Income

(see C I&E Statement)

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and (12.3) 0 (12.3) 0 0 (12.3) (26.0) (38.3)
Income

Adjustments between accounting basis & 36.8 0 36.8 14 2.4 40.6 (40.6) 0
funding basis under regulations (Note 9)

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to 24.5 0 245 1.4 24 28.3 (66.6) (38.3)
Earmarked Reserves

Transfers (to)from Earmarked Reserves (23.4) 23.4 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Note 10)

Increase/(Decrease) in Year 1.1 23.4 245 1.4 24 28.3 (66.6) (38.3)
Balance as at 31st March 2021 carried 5.7 57.7 63.4 1.8 12.2 77.4 (79.1) 1.7)
forward
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Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Council. The Net Assets of the Council, (assets less liabilities), are matched by the
reserves held by the Council.

Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e., those
reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level
of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that
may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those
that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that
hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only
become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line - Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations.

2351 Property, Plant & Equipment 13 237.2
102.8 Infrastructure Assets 13A 101.4
33.5 Heritage Assets 14 34.3
208.7 Investment Property 15 2031
0.6 Intangible Assets 1.1
9.7 Long Term Investments 18 4.7
23.1 Long Term Debtors 19 27.6
613.5 Long Term (Non-Current) Assets 609.4
49.3 Short Term Investments 18 72.0
0.1 Assets Held for Sale 0.6
0.1 Inventories 0.1
22.9 Short Term Debtors 19 41.5
8.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 2.1
80.6 Current Assets 116.3
(5.4) Short Term Borrowing 23 (4.4)
(2.3) Other Short-Term Liabilities 24 (2.3)
(33.8) Short Term Creditors (inc Receipts in 21 (65.3)
Advance)
(0.5) Capital Grants/Contributions: Receipts in (0.4)
Advance
(5.0) Provisions 22 (4.6)
(1.6) Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 (2.6)
(48.6) Current Liabilities (79.6)

39



Torbay Council
2020/21 Statement of Accounts for the year ended 315t March 2021 — Core Financial Statements

31st March Notes 31st March
2020 restated
2021
£m £m
(4.3) Long Term Creditors 21 (3.6)
(0.1) Provisions 22 (0.0)
(391.5) Long Term Borrowing 23 (388.9)
(44.4) Other Long-Term Liabilities 24 (43.5)
(168.1) Pension Liability 40 (211.4)
(0.5) Capital Grants/Contributions: Receipts in (0.4)
Advance
(608.9) Long Term Liabilities (647.8)
36.6 Net Assets/Liabilities (1.7)
491 *Usable reserves 25 77.4
(12.5) *Unusable Reserves 26 (79.1)
*Note: Restatement of 19/20 to reflect
reclassification of Dedicated School Grant Reserve
as unusable. Deferred Capital Receipts moved to
unusable reserves
36.6 Total Reserves (1.7)

i\\OLwa 2

M Phillips

Chief Finance Officer

3 April 2023
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Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the
reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing, and financing activities. The amount of
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations
of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services
provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers
of capital (i.e., borrowing) to the Council.

(12.0) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services, (12.3)
including £11.8m interest paid and (£0.5m) interest
received.
28.5 Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision See 57.3
of services for non-cash movements note
below
(11.3) Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or (12.9)

deficit on the provision of services that are investing
and financing activities including proceeds of
investments and disposal of assets

17.2 Net cash inflows/(outflow) from Operating 444
Activities

Investing Activities:

(100.0) Purchase of property, plant and equipment, 37 (19.4)
investment property, heritage, and intangible assets

0.7 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and 0.7
equipment, investment property and intangible assets

8.5 (90.8) Changes in short-term and long-term investments 18 (5.6) (24.3)

Financing Activities

(0.7) Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding 24 (0.7)
liabilities relating to transferred debt and on-balance
sheet PFI contracts

(1.8) Council Tax and NNDR adjustments (10.6)
92.4 90.1 Net change in borrowing in year 23 (3.6) (14.9)
4.5 Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash (7.1)
equivalents
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2.1 Cash and cash equivalents * at the beginning of the 20 6.6
reporting period

6.6 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 20 (0.5)
period

4.5 Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash (7.1)

equivalents

*Cash equivalents are short term cash investments that are held for the purpose of meeting short term

cash commitments rather than for investment purposes.

Note: Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements

The table below lists the adjustments required in the cash flow statement to reverse non-cash items
accounted for in the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account

20.1 Depreciation, Impairment & downward valuations 17.0
6.8 Change in value of Investment Properties 5.3
0.1 Amortisation of Intangible Assets 0.1
1.5 Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors 30.6

(14.5) (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors including (23.2)
impairment for bad debts
9.8 Movement in pension liability 13.2
3.1 Carrying amount of non-current assets and non- 6.4
current assets held for sale, sold or derecognised
1.6 Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or 7.9
deficit on the provision of services including
Council Tax and NNDR financing adjustments.
28.5 Total 57.3
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements

1.

Changes in Accounting Policy

For 2020/21 there are no changes in International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that
impacted on the accounting policies relevant to Torbay’s accounts.

The only new accounting policy is in relation to the accounting for the accumulated deficit in the
ring-fenced Dedicated schools Grant. This change is a result of a new statutory instrument (SI
2020/121). This allows the recognition of the accumulated deficit in this Grant (£5.8m 21/22) as
a negative unusable reserve instead of a negative earmarked reserve. This is to reflect the
statutory position that any negative balances in the dedicated schools grant is not a cost that
the Council will have to fund. This change will have a net nil impact on the council’s net worth.

Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

There are no changes in accounting requirements for 2021/22 that are anticipated to have a
material impact on the Council’s financial performance or financial position.

A new leasing standard (IFRS 16), which changes the current definition and accounting for
operating and finance leases, is now due to be introduced from 2022/23 with a restatement
required for 2021/22. The impact of this standard is not expected to be material as the Council
does not lease in many assets.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in the accounting policy note, the Council has had to
make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about
future events. The critical judgements, where others may have made a different judgement,
made in the statement of accounts are:

e In assessing its existing leases under IFRS guidance the Council has only considered
leases where either the value of rent or the value of the asset was material. In addition,
a ratio of 75% of lease term to asset life has been used as a guide to recognising
leases as finance leases.

e The Council has recognised a long-term liability for the annual local government
reorganisation discretionary pension payment to Devon County Council. This payment
is invoiced for in the year that the County Council makes payments to its pensioners.

e The Council recognised its (£33m/17%) share of the Energy from Waste facility in
Plymouth based on estimated tonnages per the business case for the facility and the
financial allocation model agreed between Torbay, Plymouth, and Devon County
Councils. All three Councils have assessed the facility to be "on balance sheet" under
IFRIC12 as a service concession arrangement. The Council has recognised a liability
to the value of the asset recognised. This liability is apportioned between the Council's
own liability to fund the asset based on forecast unitary payments over the life of the
facility from the three councils (£12m/37%) and the expected third-party income
(£21m/63%) based on the business case. The third-party income liability has been
accounted for as deferred income with the balance allocated to the Council's CI&E
statement over the life of the 25-year contract. As a "non-cash" transaction this credit
will be reversed in the MIRS to the Capital Adjustment Account the asset life of the
facility has been assessed at 30 years based on the contract life and the optional 5-
year extension period. The Council has assumed all lifecycle costs to be revenue
unless evidence that they are capital.
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There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local
government. However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet
sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council might be impaired
because of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. The Council
can only be dissolved by a statutory prescription.

The Council has several pensions guarantees to related bodies where the Council
could incur a liability if the body becomes insolvent. These are classified as insurance
contracts under IFRS4. As at 31 March 2021 there are no issues in relation to the going
concern of these bodies. In arriving at this conclusion, the Council considered data
from the actuary of the pension fund together with the Council’s knowledge of the
bodies and made the judgement that the values and risk exposure were not material.

Included in the pension guarantees is one to the TDA in relation to pension liabilities.
The value has been assessed as 100% of the TDA IFRS19 pension valuation under
Derivative Liabilities — IFRS9. A 100% value has been assessed on the basis that the
probability of the liability crystalising cannot be accurately estimated and TDA, as a
teckel compliant company is primarily reliant on the council for its funding. The relevant
statutory pension override has been considered applicable as the liability primarily
relates to staff transferred from the council to the TDA who would otherwise have been
employees of the council.

In relation to central government COVID funding received in the year:

o For the business grants, business restriction grants awarded under the national
scheme criteria and test and trace payments for residents isolating the Council
has assumed it is acting as “agent”

o For unringfenced grants including the sales, fees and charges compensation
grant and the collection fund irrecoverable losses compensation grant these
have been recognised as a non-specific grant.

o For all other grants, including discretionary business grants, these have been
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation

Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by
the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made considering
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances
can’t be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the
assumptions and estimates. There were no changes in accounting estimates in 2020/21 or
expected in future years.

The only items in the Council’'s balance sheet at 31st March 2021 for which there is a
significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:
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Net Pension Liability Value 31/3/21 £211m (£168m 19/20)

The Council’s liability as at 315t March is based on a The effects on the net pension liability of
number of complex judgements relating to changes in individual assumptions can be
measured. For instance, a future 0.1%
increase in the discount rate assumption

o the rate at which salaries may change would result in a change in the (gross)
pension liability of £11m. Similarly, a change
in the mortality assumption of 1 year would

e the discount rate used

¢ changes in retirement dates

e mortality rates result in a change of £24m. However, the
assumptions interact in complex ways. The
e and expected return on pension fund assets. actuary advised that, during 2020/21, the
A firm of pension actuaries are used to provide this net pensions’ liability had increased by
information and every three years there is a detailed £43m.

actuarial review of the fund. A table on sensitivity of assumptions is

The value of pension assets is estimated (by the actuary) included in the Pensions Note.
based upon information available at the Balance Sheet
date, but these valuations may be earlier than the Balance
Sheet date. The actual valuations at the Balance Sheet
date, which may not be available until sometime later, may
give a different value of pension assets, but this difference
is not considered to be material.

COVID19 Pandemic

The impact of the global pandemic which had only started Although there is ongoing uncertainty in the
to impact on the Torbay area as at 31 March 2020 longer-term impact on some balance sheet
continued during 2020/21. values primarily on non-current asset the
Council’'s appointed valuer has provided an
updated valuation certificate including
investment property. The exception is the
valuation for the EFW asset which was
valued by NPS and the one valuation was
reported as subject to “material valuation
uncertainty”.

The Council has valuations as at year end
for all its financial assets used for treasury
management purposes such as deposits
and its holding in a property fund.

The Pension Fund IAS19 valuation used
pension fund asset values at month 11.

The collectability of the Council’s debt
including council tax and NNDR as at year
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5.

Events after the Reporting Period

end is likely to have reduced. The exact
impact is unknown as there is no historic
experience, however the Council has
increased its impairment for its outstanding
debt including Council tax and NNDR.

In other cases, the Council has obtained a
reasonable value such as a quoted value of
an asset or liability as at 31 March 2021.

The Council, on a “case by case basis”, has
increased impairment for increased
uncertainty for the uncollectablity of income
due for several debtors.

Events taking place after the 31 March 2021 are not reflected in the financial statements. There

are no significant events to report up to that date.

The COVID19 pandemic started to have an impact in the Torbay area from March 2020,
continued during 2020/21 and is continuing to have an impact in 2021/22. The impact of the
pandemic on both the community and the Council will continue in the longer term and that
longer term impact is currently unknown. During 2022/23 the Council has experienced
significant inflationary pressures however this does not materially impact on the 2020/21

financial position and its 2020/21 accounts.

Council at its meeting on 29 July 2021 resolved to amend the 2020/21 outturn by allocating
£0.1m to a Harbour Reserve instead of the General Fund reserve. This change will be actioned

in 2021/22 accounts.
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6. Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This statement shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in
comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this
expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s services. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted
accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

37.7 (5.0) 32.7 | Adult’s Services 38.6 0.7 39.3
431 4.1 47.2 | Children’s Services 41.6 5.8 47.4
6.2 4.8 11.0 | Corporate Services 6.8 1.7 8.5
(4.9) (3.5) (8.4) | Finance 0.1 (3.4) (3.3)
19.7 14.4 34.1 | Place (inc: Business Service, Planning & Transport) 24.4 5.0 29.4
9.6 (0.8) 8.8 | Public Health 10.2 (1.8) 8.4
111.4 14.0 125.4 | Cost of Services 121.7 8.0 129.7
(111.4) (2.0) (113.4) | Other Income & Expenditure (121.7) 4.3 (117.4)
0 12.0 12.0 | (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 0 12.3 12.3

Note: General Fund Opening Balance as at 31 March 2020 £4.6m and Closing Balance as at 31 March 2021 £5.7m
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7. Expenditure and Income Analysis

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis from General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement amounts.

(0.2) 0 (4.8) (5.0) | Adult Social Care 0.1 0 0.6 0.7

20 0 21 4.1 | Children’s Services 5.2 0 0.6 5.8

(0.6) 0 54 4.8 | Corporate Services (2.2) 0 3.9 1.7

(5.5) 4.9 (2.9) (3.5) | Finance (6.8) 9.0 (5.6) (3.4)

16.3 0 (1.9) 14.4 | Place (inc: Business Services, Planning & 115 0 (6.5) 5.0
Transport)

0 0 (0.8) (0.8) | Public Health 0 0 (1.8) (1.8)
12.0 4.9 (2.9) 14.0 | Net Cost of Services 7.8 9.0 (8.8) 8.0
(6.5) 4.2 0.3 (2.0) | Other income and expenditure from (1.7) 4.2 1.8 4.3

Expenditure and Funding Analysis
5.5 9.1 (2.6) 12.0 | Difference between General Fund 6.1 13.2 (7.0) 12.3
(surplus)/deficit and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
(surplus)/deficit on the Provision of
Services
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8. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

The Council’'s expenditure and income are analysed as follows: -

Expenditure
67.1 Employee benefits expenses 74.1
203.6 Other services expenses 219.7
32.5 Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and change in Fair Value (net) 36.7
16.5 Interest payments 17.4
04 Precepts and levies 0.5
3.1 Written out of accounts on the disposal of assets 6.4
323.2 Total Expenditure 354.8
Income
(34.3) Fees, charges, and other service income (31.5)
(21.9) Financing & Investment Income and Other Operating Income (32.3)
(84.7) Council tax and non-domestic rates (net) (74.6)
(170.3) Government grants and contributions (204.1)
(311.2) Total Income (342.5)
12.0 (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Service 12.3

Segmental Income of Fees, charges, and other service income

Income received on a segmental basis, primarily from external customers, is analysed below:

(5.0) Adult’'s Services (5.3)
(4.4) Children’s Services (3.4)
(4.8) Corporate Services 4.7)
(0.1) Finance (0.1)
(19.8) Place (18.0)
(0.2) Public Health 0

(34.3) Total income analysed on a segmental basis (31.5)

9. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting
practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the
Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. Other includes Accumulated Absences
Adjustment Account, Collection Fund Adjustment Account and Pooled Investment Fund
Adjustment Account.
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Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment

Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement:

Items relating to capital expenditure

(20.1) 0 0 0 201 0 0  Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current (17.0) 0 0 0 17.0 0 0
assets

(0.1) 0 0 0 0.1 0 0  Amortisation of intangible assets (0.1) 0 0 0 0.1 0 0

(3.2) 0.1 0 0 3.1 0 0  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (4.6) 0 0 0 4.6 0 0

(3.1) 0 0 0 24 0 0.7  Amounts of non-current assets written off on (6.4) 0 0 0 3.7 0 2.7*

disposal/sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
CI&E statement. *Revaluation Reserve

0.1 0 0 0 (0.1) 0 0  Notional Rent Credit 0.1 0 0 0 (0.1) 0 0

(26.4) 0.1 0 25.6 0 0.7 cif (28.0) 0 0 0 253 0 2.7
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(26.4) 0.1 0 25.6 0 0.7 b/f (28.0) 25.3 2.7
0.8 0 0 (0.8) 0 0 Deferred Credit re Energy from Waste 0.8 (0.8) 0
Other
(6.8) 0 0 6.8 0 0  Movement in the fair value of Investment Properties and (5.3) 5.3 0
AHFS
Items relating to capital financing applied in the year
10.3 0 0 (10.3) 0 0 Capital Grants and Contributions Applied 6.3 (6.3) 0
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Items relating to capital financing applied in the year
5.3 0 0 (5.3) 0 0  Provision for the financing of capital investment 7.2 (7.2) 0
1.7 0 0 (1.7) 0 0 Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 1.5 (1.5) 0
(15.1) 0.1 0 14.3 0 0.7 cif (17.5) 14.8 2.7
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0.1 0 0 14.3

0.7

b/f

(17.5)

0

14.8

2.7

Adjustments involving Capital Grant Unapplied
Account

71

0 (71 0 0

Capital Grants & Contributions unapplied credited to the
CI&E Statement

8.6

(8.6)

0 60 0 (6.0)

Application of (prior year) Grants to capital financing
applied in the year transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account

6.2

(6.2)

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts
Reserve:

3.4

07) 0 (7)) 0

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the CI&E Statement

2.7

(0.7)

(2.0)

10 0 0 (1.0)

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new
capital expenditure applied in the year

(0.7)

0.7

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

(4.6)

04 (11) (27) 73

0.7

c/f

(6.2)

(1.4)

(2.4)

(2.0)

9.3

2.7
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@46) 04 (11) (27) 173 0 07 bif 62) (14) (24) (20 93 0 27

(16.8) 0 0 0 0 16.8 0 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited (20.6) 0 0 0 0 20.6 0
or credited to the CI&E Statement (see Note 40)

7.7 0 0 0 0 (7.7) 0  Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments 7.4 0 0 0 0 (7.4) 0
to pensioners payable in the year

Adjustments involving the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account:

(0.2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.2 Amount by which collection fund income credited to the (14.8) 0 0 0 0 0 14.8
CI&E Statement is different from collection fund income
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

Adjustment involving the Accumulated
Absences Account

(13.9) 04 (1.1) (27) 73 91 09 cf (34.2) (14) (24) (20) 93 132 175
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Cememo em o Em o EmoEm o em e tm o em  gm o gm fm o gm

(13.9) 04 (11) (27) 73 91 09 bif (342) (14) (24) (20) 93 132 175

(0.1) 0 0 0 0 0 0.1 Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the (0.6) 0 0 0 0 0 0.6
CI&E Statement on an accruals basis is different from
remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with
statutory requirements

Adjustment involving the Pooled Fund
Adjustments Account

(0.2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.2  Amount by which financial instruments charged to the (0) 0 0 0 0 0 0
CI&E Statement are different from amounts chargeable
in the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Adjustment involving the Dedicated Schools
Grant Adjustments Account

(Previously the Dedicated Schools Grant Deficit Reserve)

(1.1) 0 0 0 0 0 1.1 Deficit on Dedicated Schools Grant (2.0) 0 0 0 0 0 2.0

(153) 04 (11) (27) 73 91 23 Total Adjustments per MIRS (36.8) (1.4) (24) (2.0) 93 132 201
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Memo items: -
(12.0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Surplus/(Deficit) on Provision of Services (12.3) 0 0 0 0 0 0
(3.3) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Movement in earmarked reserves (23.4) 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 (15.4) 0 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure: 0 0 0 0 0 30.7 0

Remeasurement of net defined pension liability

0 0 0 0 (1.4) 0 0 Other movements on the Capital Adjustment Account including 0 0 0 0 (1.8) 0 1.6
- Adjusting amounts written out of the revaluation reserve to

the Capital Adjustment Account

(0 04 11 (27 59 (6.3 23 Total Movement in year (1.1) (1.4) (24) (200 75 439 21.7
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10. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to
provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked
reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2020/21.

Reserves: -

earmarked for

General 4.9 (3.1) 0.4 2.2 (0.5) 0.7 2.4
Expenditure

earmarked for
specific issues 10.5 (9.7) 7.3 8.1 (4.9) 11.6 14.8

Collection Fund
Reserve* 0.5 (0.1) 0 0.4 0 16.6 17.0

to reflect timing
of expenditure

including grants 6.3 (3.7) 11.1 13.7 (9.5) 7.8 12.0
received but not

spent.

to support

Capital 1.6 (1.0) 1.6 2.2 (0.1) 1.4 3.5

expenditure
School Related

Reserves 0.2 0 0 0.2 0 0.3 0.5
Schools’

Balances (held

under a 0.9 (1.0) 0.2 0.1 (0.1) 1.4 1.4
delegation

scheme)

Ring Fenced 6.1 (4.8) 6.1 7.4 (3.0) 1.7 6.1
Total 3.0 | (234) 267 34.3 (18.1) 415 57.7

*Collection Fund Reserve Note. This reserve is holding a one-off balance of £11.6m from 2020/21
central government “section 31” grant relating to NNDR retail, leisure and hospitality reliefs that
will be applied in 2021/22, and £3.5m to fund the 2020/21 collection fund deficit over the next
three years.
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11. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

12.3 Interest payable and similar charges 13.1

4.2 Net interest on net defined pension liability 4.2

(1.1) Interest receivable and similar income (1.6)

(3.6) Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties (6.1)
and changes in their fair value

(1.0) Gain from Devon wide NNDR Pool (0.8)

10.8 Total 8.8

12. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

(69.0) Council tax Income (72.7)
(33.1) Retained income from rate retention scheme (45.1)
(1.5) Collection Fund — NNDR & Council Tax (1.7)
0.1 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 14.8
(7.7) Non ring-fenced government grants (8.1)
(13.0) Capital grants and contributions (17.4)
(124.2) Total (130.2)

13. Property, Plant and Equipment

Measurement Basis

Non-Current assets are valued at fair value for their particular asset type (category). Fair Value
will therefore reflect:

o Existing Use Value for most categories of Property Plant and Equipment (P, P&E)

o Depreciated Replacement Cost for assets of a specialised nature with no readily
identifiable market

o Depreciated Historical Cost for Community and Vehicles, Plant and Equipment

e Historical Cost for Assets under Construction
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¢ Modified Historical Cost for Infrastructure

Depreciation method

Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of each asset to reflect the
pattern in which the asset’s service potential is expected to be used.

Depreciation is applied to all asset types apart from land which is not depreciated due to its
nature.

Useful lives used

The useful life of an asset represents the period over which an asset is expected to be of use in
providing services for the Council.

Movements on Balances

Reconciliation of movements in 2020/21, and the prior year 2019/20, in Property, Plant and
Equipment by category of assets is shown in the tables below:
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£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost or Valuation
As at 15t April 2019 207.0 16.8 9.2 0.9 10.8 2447 48.5
Additions 19.1 4.1 0 0.4 1.9 25.5 0
Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 2.1 0 0 0.2 0.1 2.4 (0.3)
Revglgatlon Incrgases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 9.3) 0 0 (0.5) 0 9.8) 0
Provision of Services
Derecognition — Disposals (3.0) 0 0 0 0 (3.0) 0
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other movements in Cost or Valuation 8.1 0 0 0.2 (7.4) 0.9 0
As at 315t March 2020 224.0 20.9 9.2 1.2 5.4 260.7 48.2
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
As at 1st April 2019 (7.1) (15.0) (0.8) 0 0 (22.9) (0.7)
Depreciation charge (4.7) (0.5) (0.2) 0 0 (5.4) (1.6)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 2.0 0 0 0 0 2.0 1.3
Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services 0.6 0 0 0 0 0.6 0
Derecognition — Disposals 0.1 0 0 0 0 0.1
Other movements in Depreciation and Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
As at 31st March 2020 (9.1) (15.5) (1.0) 0 0 (25.6) (1.0)
Net Book Value:-
As at 315t March 2020 214.9 5.4 8.2 1.2 5.4 235.1 47.2

t

As at 31% March 2019 199.9 1.8 8.4 0.9 10.8 221.8 | 47.8
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